
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, September 24, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, 
Cedarburg, WI, in the second floor Council Chambers.  
            

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Mike O’Keefe 
 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
  
Excused -  

Common Council – Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council 
Members Dan von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart, 
Rick Verhaalen, Patricia Thome, and Rod Galbraith 
 
Council Member Garan Chivinski 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - September 10, 2018 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider Ordinance No. 2018-15 annexing the one acre parcel at 7404 Western 

Avenue in the Town of Cedarburg to the City; and action thereon  (Plan Comm. 
09/05/18) 

 
* B. Consider referral of proposed annexation of an approximately one acre parcel of 

land directly south of W76 N627 Wauwatosa Road (Lot 2 of CSM No. 4010) in 
the Town of Cedarburg to the Plan Commission; and action thereon 

 
* C. Consider approval of two-lot CSM at W59 N894 Sheboygan Road; and action 

thereon (Plan Comm. 09/05/18) 
 
* D. Consider approval of three-lot CSM at N49 W5237 Portland Road; and action 

thereon (Plan Comm. 09/05/18) 
 
* E. Consider funding for Highway 60 traffic study; and action thereon 
 
* F. Consider bids received for repairs to the Woolen Mills and Columbia Mills dams; 

and action thereon 
Page 1 of 55



 
* G. Consider payment of bills dated 09/19/18, transfers for the period 09/01/18 

through 09/18/18; and payroll for the period 08/26/18 through 09/08/18; and 
action thereon 

 
*** H. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    

 1. Consider approval of new Operator License application for the period 
ending June 30, 2019 for Mary Kay Bourbulas and Sherina Gold 

 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operator License applications for the period 

ending June 30, 2019 for James L. Wendt  
 

9.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
 
10. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 
 
 
 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
 
 
09/20/18 ckm  
 

Page 2 of 55

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 
  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20180910-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                September 10, 2018 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Monday, September 10, 2018, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Mayor O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call: Present -  Common Council – Mayor Michael O’Keefe, Council Members Dan 

von Bargen, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart, Rick Verhaalen, Garan 
Chivinski, Patricia Thome, Rod Galbraith 

                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, Director of Engineering 
and Public Works Tom Wiza, City Planner Jon Censky, interested 
citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Mayor O’Keefe’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting was 
provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, 
to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their 
input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Chivinski, to approve the 
minutes of the August 27, 2018 meeting as presented.  Motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
James Schmit, 1941 Ulao Pkwy, Grafton, requested that fish cribs be installed at Adlai Horn Park 
because many of the trees have been removed and the fish do not have a place to live.  He explained 
the process for making an easy crib or they can be purchased.  He also asked for a revision to the 
bow fishing ordinance eliminating the requirement to ask permission from each property owner 
within 100 yards of shooting because this is impractical.  He suggested allowing a raised platform 
with a 50 foot line to shoot into the water. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen and Mayor O’Keefe suggested that this be presented to the Parks, 
Recreation & Forestry Board.     
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2018-14 AMENDING SEC. 13-1-61(d) OF THE ZONING 
CODE TO ALLOW HAIR SALONS AS A CONDITIONAL USE IN THE M-3 BUSINESS 
PARK DISTRICT; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Mayor O’Keefe declared the public hearing open at 7:07 p.m. to consider Ordinance No. 2018-14 
amending Sec. 13-1-61(d) of the Zoning Code to allow hair salons as a Conditional Use in the M-3 
Business Park District. 

Page 3 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180910-2 
September 10, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
City Planner Censky explained that Isaac and Rachelle Covert are requesting this zoning text 
amendment to add Hair Salons to the list of uses in the M-3 Business Park District to establish an 
approval process for Mrs. Covert to operate her hair salon business from within the building at N19 
W6733 Commerce Court.  When she approached the owner of the Commerce Court building, she 
was encouraged to pursue City approval; however, when she contacted City staff, she was informed 
that hair salons are not permitted in the M-3 Business Park District without a Code amendment to 
list them.  He further explained that this district currently allows such uses as indoor athletic 
facilities, day care facilities, medical clinics and veterinary hospitals as conditional uses; all of 
which seem to have similar characteristics and/or impacts of a hair salon.  Accordingly, the Plan 
Commission agreed that hair salons were similar in character and offered a service that could 
benefit other uses in the business park and recommended the change unanimously. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Burkart, to close the 
public hearing at 7:15 p.m. 
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, City Planner Censky said that this business park is 
the only M-3 Business Park District; however, it may apply to the Hwy 60 development in the 
future. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Planner Censky explained that the uses need to 
be listed in this district and hair salons were overlooked. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Burkart, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2018-14 amending Sec. 13-1-61(d) of the Zoning Code to allow hair salons as a 
Conditional Use in the M-3 Business Park District.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2018-24 COMMENDING CEDARBURG OVERHEAD 
DOOR FOR SMALL BUSINESS OF THE YEAR AWARD; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Galbraith, to adopt 
Resolution No.  2018-24 commending Cedarburg Overhead Door for Small Business of the Year 
award.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER BIDS RECEIVED FOR THE 2018 ASPHALT PAVEMENT REPAIR 
PROGRAM; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that staff advertised for and received bids for the 2018 asphalt repair 
program.  This years’ program includes asphalt repair work on Evergreen Blvd. north of Bridge 
Road, on Portland Road east of the railroad tracks, and the Fire Department parking lot.  Only two 
bids were received for the work.  The lowest responsive bid was submitted by Parking Lot 
Maintenance, Inc. in the total amount of $137,527.50.  The total amount budgeted was $145,000 
and staff recommends awarding this bid on the basis of their low unit price bid.   
 
In answer to Council Member Arnett’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained 
that the Town of Cedarburg does not pay anything towards the Fire Department building.  It is fully 
funded by the City’s capital budget. 
 

Page 4 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180910-3 
September 10, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Verhaalen, seconded by Council Member Thome, to award the 
2018 asphalt pavement repair program to Parking Lot Maintenance, Inc., based on their low bid, in 
an amount not to exceed $137,527.50.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER EXTENSION OF CASH FARM LEASE WITH RODEN ECHO VALLEY, LLC 
FOR 2019; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that the City of Cedarburg has had an annual Cash Farm Lease with Robert 
Roden for 47 acres at 6603 Highway 60 (former Kohlwey Farm) which dates back to 1999.  While 
the land is eventually intended to be used for business park development, the required design, 
permitting, and utility extensions make 2019 construction unlikely.  Additionally, Mr. Roden has 
agreed to increase the rent paid to $75 per acre.  Director Wiza stated that Mr. Roden has been an 
exceptional renter who rotates his crops, controls weeds, and does not track mud on Highway 60.   
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve 
the extension of the cash farm lease with Roden Echo Valley, LLC for 2019 with two equal 
payments of $1,762.50 made.  Motion carried without a negative vote.   
 
CONSIDER MAYOR O’KEEFE’S REAPPOINTMENT OF JIM COUTTS AND ANDY 
MOSS TO THE LIGHT AND WATER COMMISSION (TERMS EXPIRE 09/30/21); AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve Mayor 
O’Keefe’s reappointment of Jim Coutts and Andy Moss to the Light & Water Commission (terms 
expire 09/30/21).  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS DATED 09/04/18, TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 
08/09/18 THROUGH 08/20/18; AND PAYROLL FOR THE PERIOD 08/12/18 THROUGH 
08/25/18; AND ACTION THEREON  
 
Council Member Arnett highlighted a payment to Gollnick & Sons for $1,200 and asked if the City 
ever bids out this type of work.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that this was for a 
fallen tree and sometimes it is urgent to have the work done.  The City tries to hire local businesses 
for this type of work. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen asked why the phone bill for the Library is three times higher than the 
City’s phone charges.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that the Library chose to stay 
with landlines when the City changed to VOIP.  The City charges are for alarm and fax lines only. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to approve 
payment of bills dated 09/04/18, transfers for the period 08/09/18 through 08/20/18, and payroll for 
the period 08/12/18 through 08/25/18.  Motion carried without a negative vote.   
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Galbraith, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve new 
Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2019 for Robert L. Parson and 
Benjamin M. Tushaus.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  

Page 5 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180910-4 
September 10, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Galbraith, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve 
renewal Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2019 for Candace A. Burger 
and Dale G. Mueller.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes reported that Sandy Welch started as a part-time 
Administrative Assistant in the Clerk’s Office and will be working Monday through Friday from 
10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes also reported that Judge Voiland issued a decision denying the 
Banas’ petition regarding the August Weber Haus alcohol beverage license. The Common 
Council’s decision to revoke the license stands.  City Attorney Herbrand said that the Banas’ have 
45 days (until Monday, October 22) in which to begin an appeal of Judge Voiland’s decision to the 
Court of Appeals. 
 
Council Member Arnett asked City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes to forward the decision to the 
Common Council. 
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS – None 
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Thome stated that Lowell Levy’s passing is a great loss to the community.  He 
was a kind and generous man who was the Cedarburg City Attorney for over 30 years and a 
community volunteer for over 50 years. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen reminded the Common Council to attend Mel’s Pig Roast on 
September 30.  All of the money raised stays within Ozaukee County. 
 
Council Member Thome encouraged the Common Council to attend the Cedarburg Greater 
Foundation Gala on September 22. 
 
Council Member von Bargen stated that he received two complaints about dog bites and dogs being 
off leash.  He expressed concern for seeing many dogs off leash in the City and asked if this could 
be addressed.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes stated that she will talk to the Police 
Department and look at the Ordinance to discuss at a future Common Council meeting. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained 
that Mr. Kison did 13 inspections in August because Building Inspector Baier was on vacation. 
 
Council Member Arnett asked the Common Council Members to thank Joe Kassander and 
Birchwood for improving the City entrance sign at no cost to the City. 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT - None  
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 55



COMMON COUNCIL CC20180910-5 
September 10, 2018                      UNAPPROVED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member von Bargen, to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:35 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
              
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

Page 7 of 55



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE:  September 24, 2018                                                         ITEM NO: 8. A. 
 
TITLE: Consider Ordinance No. 2018-15 annexing the one-acre parcel at 7404 Western Avenue in 

the Town of Cedarburg to the City; and action thereon  (Plan Comm. 09/05/18) 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Sara Dunstone has petitioned the City to have her 1-acre parcel, located at the 

northeast corner of Webster Avenue and Western Avenue, annexed into the City for the purpose of 

gaining access to public sewer and water facilities for a future land division. Council members will 

recall having accepted this petition at your July 30, 2018 and referred to the Plan Commission for 

review and recommendation. The Plan Commission reviewed this petition at their September 5, 

2018 meeting and recommended approval. 

 

State law requires that the annexed area be placed in temporary zoning until an ordinance is created 

to amend that zoning.  Accordingly, this site will be placed in the Rs-1 (Temporary) until the applicant 

petitions the City for permanent zoning at a later date. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Ordinance No. 2018-15 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: As noted, this petition was 

reviewed by the Plan Commission at their September 5, 2018 meeting and recommended approval 

by unanimous vote 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  n/a 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance No. 2018-15 
 Unapproved minutes from the September 5, 2018 Plan Commission meeting. 
 Annexation Map 

 
 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Sara Dunstone, Owner 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 8 of 55



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-15 

 

An Ordinance Annexing Territory to the City of Cedarburg 

7404 Western Road 

Linmar Property Group 

 

     The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, does hereby ordain as follows: 

 

     SECTION 1.  Territory Annexed.  In accordance with Section 66.0217(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes and 

the Petition for Direct Annexation filed with the City Clerk of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, on July 19, 

signed by all owners of all the real property in the territory and all electors residing in the territory, the 

following described territory in the Town of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin, is annexed to the City of 

Cedarburg, Wisconsin: 

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 27, 

TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH. RANGE 21 EAST, TOWN OF CEDARBURG, OZAUKEE 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN, WHICH IS BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 27; THENCE N87°07'24"E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 

1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27,  528.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE N02°52'36"W 336.00 FEET; THENCE N87°07'24"E 132.00 FEET; 

THENCE S02°52'36"E 336.00 FEET TO THE  SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 

OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27;  THENCE S87°07'24"W ALONG SAID 

SOUTH LINE 132.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 1.02 ACRES TOTAL, 0.88 ACRES WITHOUT RIGHT OF 

WAY. 

 

OWNERS: LINMAR PROPERTY GROUP 

TAX KEY NUMBER: 03-027-11-019.00 

ADDRESS:  7404 WESTERN AVE 

CEDARBURG WI 53012 

 

The current population of the territory is zero. 

 

MBR Number: 14135 

 

SECTION 2.  Effect of Annexation.  From and after the date of this ordinance, the territory described 

in Section 1 shall be a part of the City of Cedarburg for any and all purposes provided by law, and all persons 

coming or residing within such territory shall be subject to all ordinances, rules and regulations governing the 

City of Cedarburg. 

   

SECTION 3.  Temporary Zoning Classification.  (a) The territory annexed to the City of Cedarburg 

by this ordinance is temporarily zoned as follows, pursuant to Sec. 66.0217(8) of the Wisconsin Statutes:  RS-

1 Single Family Residential District; (b) The Plan Commission is directed to prepare an amendment to the 

zoning ordinance setting forth permanent classifications and regulations for the zoning of the annexed area, 

Page 9 of 55



and to subject its recommendation to the Council within one year of the annexation. 

 

SECTION 4.  Aldermanic District Designation.  Section 2-1-3 of the Code of Ordinances of  the 

City of Cedarburg is hereby amended to incorporate this annexation.  The territory described in Section 1 of 

this ordinance is hereby made a part of Ward 2, Aldermanic District 2 of the City of Cedarburg, as described 

in Section 2-1-3 of the City of Cedarburg Code of Ordinances, subject to the ordinances, rules and regulations 

of the City governing aldermanic districts, and subject to the County Board amending the supervisory district 

map to move this parcel from County Supervisory District 11 representing the Town of Cedarburg to County 

Supervisory District 17 representing the City of Cedarburg. 

 

SECTION 5.  Town Taxes.  The City agrees to pay annually to the Town of Cedarburg, for five  

years, an amount equal to the amount of property taxes that the Town levied on the annexed territory, as 

shown by the tax roll, in the year in which the annexation is final. 

 

SECTION 6.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance is invalid or unconstitutional, or if the 

application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances is invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or 

unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions or applications of this ordinance, which can be given 

effect without the invalid or unconstitutional provision or application. 

 

SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect November 7, 2018 upon publication as 

provided by law. 

 

Passed and adopted by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, this 24
th

 day of September, 

2018. 

 

 

 

                                 _______________________________ 

                                   Michael O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

Attest:  

 

____________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Michael Herbrand, City Attorney 

Page 10 of 55



Page 11 of 55



Page 12 of 55



 
 

CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 PLAN COMMISSION PLN20180905-1 
   UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 September 5, 2018  
 
A regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Cedarburg was held on 
Wednesday, September 5, 2018 at Cedarburg City Hall, W63 N645 Washington 
Avenue, second floor, Council Chambers. The meeting was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. by Mayor O’Keefe. 
 
Roll Call: Present -  Mayor Michael J. O’Keefe, Council Member Patricia 

Thome, Mark Burgoyne, Greg Zimmerschied, Heather 
Cain, Adam Voltz, Sig Strautmanis 

 
 Also Present -  City Planner Jon Censky, Administrative Secretary Darla 

Drumel 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS PERTAINING TO ANNEXATION PETITION AND 
PROPOSED CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR 7404 WESTERN ROAD IN THE 
TOWN OF CEDARBURG – SARA DUNSTONE 
 
Planner Censky noted that Sara Dunstone has petitioned to have her one-acre parcel, 
located at the northeast corner of Webster Avenue and Western Avenue, annexed 
into the City to have access to public sewer and water facilities for a future land 
division. The lot is contiguous with the City’s border to the east and south. This 
petition was accepted by the Common Council on July 30, 2018 and referred to the 
Plan Commission for review and recommendation. 
 
State law requires that the annexed area be placed in temporary zoning until an 
ordinance is created to amend that zoning.  Accordingly, this site will be placed in the 
Rs-1 (Temporary) until the applicant petitions the City for permanent zoning at a later 
date. 
 
Action: 
Commissioner Zimmerschied moved to recommend the annexation of 7404 Western 
Avenue to the City of Cedarburg, conditioned upon the application of the R-1 
Temporary Zoning to the site. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cain. 
 
Continued Discussion: 
Commissioners discussed the possible requirement of installing sidewalk along 
Webster Avenue to the north limits of 7404 Western Avenue. It was noted that 
Webster Avenue is in the Town of Cedarburg. 
 
Final Action: 
The motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 55



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20180905-2 
September 5, 2018 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

CONSIDER TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR W59 N894 SHEBOYGAN 
ROAD – BRETT BODENBURG AND NATASHA SHEPERD 
 
Planner Censky advised that Brett Bodenburg and Natasha Sheperd recently 
purchased the property at W59 N894 Sheboygan Road with plans to divide the parcel 
into two; separating the barn and the house on individual lots. This division is being 
requested because the ultimate goal is to convert the barn into a home for their father 
and they would reside in the existing home. They are requesting approval of their 
Certified Survey Map (CSM) which will result in two lots of 17,111sf and 50,226sf; 
each Code compliant with the Rs-3 District size requirement of 12,000sf. According to 
the CSM, these two sites will be supported by a single shared drive. The shared drive 
will also provide for the preservation of mature trees. Since this request will result in 
the dedication of the ultimate road right-of-way, the CSM will need to be approved by 
the Common Council as well. 
 
Commissioners discussed the potential conflict between property owners associated 
with shared drives, noting that there is sufficient road frontage for a drive approach for 
the new lot. They also discussed the safety factor of having fewer driveway access 
points along Sheboygan Road. Commissioners also discussed the possible source of 
contention between property owners with the creation of the flag lot providing access 
to Cedar Creek for Lot 2. 
 
Action: 
A motion was made by Commissioner Zimmerschied, seconded by Vice Chairperson 
Burgoyne, to recommend the proposed two-lot CSM at W59 N894 Sheboygan Road  
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. New sanitary sewer and water lateral shall be cut into Sheboygan Road to 
serve Lot 1. 

2. Common Council approval of the CSM. 
3. The applicant to draft and record a shared driveway/maintenance easement. 
4. Impact fees per new lot will be due at the time of building permit issuance 

($7,843.39 for 2018). 
 
The motion carried without a negative vote. 
 
CONSIDER REQUEST FOR THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED A N49 W5237 PORTLAND ROAD – MARC CASSEL 
 
Planner Censky explained that Marc Cassel is seeking approval of a certified survey 
map which will divide the existing 2.03-acre parcel located at N49 W7907 Western 
Road into three lots of 24,892 sf, 30,266sf and 129,617sf in size; each Code 
compliant with the Rs-1 District minimum size requirement of 20,000sf. The existing 
home will be on Lot 3. Sewer and water laterals are installed in the right-of-way for 
Lots 1 and 2, but the building setback and elevation of the future homes will dictate 
whether grinder pumps will be required. The future homes on Lots 1 and 2 will require 
Plan Commission approval as these lots will be classified as infill. Since this land 

Page 14 of 55



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20180905-3 
September 5, 2018 UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

division will result in the dedication of public right–of-way, Common Council approval 
is necessary. 
 
Action: 
Commissioner Zimmerschied moved to approve the three-lot CSM proposed for the 
property located at N49 W5237 Portland Road, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Common Council approval. 
 

2. Payment of the per lot impact fee for Lots 1 and 2 at the time of building 
permit issuance ($7,843.39 for 2018). 

 
The motion was seconded by Council Member Thome and carried without a negative 
vote. 

Page 15 of 55



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2018                                                         ITEM NO: 8. B. 
 
TITLE: Consider referral of proposed annexation of an approximately one-acre parcel of land directly 

south of W76 N627 Wauwatosa Road (Lot 2 of CSM No. 4010) in the Town of Cedarburg to the 

Plan Commission; and action thereon 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  The purpose of this annexation request is to add/attach a 34-foot-wide by 

1,265-foot-long strip of land located directly south of the developing Hamilton House Senior Living 

Facility for the purpose of receiving excess fill material and constructing a screening berm. In 

accordance with State Law, this petition should be referred to the Plan Commission for their review 

and recommendation. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Refer to Plan Commission 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  n/a 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Annexation Petition 
 Annexation Map 

 
 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Vernon and Mary Lynn Prost/Hamilton House Senior Living. 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 16 of 55



Page 17 of 55



Page 18 of 55



Page 19 of 55



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2018                                                     ITEM NO: 8. C. 
 
TITLE:   Consider approval of two-lot CSM at W59 N894 Sheboygan Road; and action thereon (Plan 
Comm. 09/05/18) 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY: This Certified Survey Map (CSM) will result in two lots of 17,111sf and 50,226sf; 

each Code compliant with the Rs-3 District size requirement of 12,000sf. Since this request will 

result in the dedication of the ultimate road right-of-way of Sheboygan Road, State law requires that 

it be approved by Common Council action. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff’s review of the Certified Survey Map indicates full compliance 

with the dimensional requirements of the Zoning Code and therefore we recommend approval 

subject to the following: 

 New sanitary sewer and water lateral shall be cut into Sheboygan Road to serve Lot 1. 

 Common Council approval of the CSM. 

 The applicant to draft and record a shared driveway/maintenance easement. 

 Impact fee due at the time of building permit issuance (Impact fee for 2018 = $7,843.39). 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: At their September 5, 2018 

meeting the Plan Commission recommended approval be unanimous vote. 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Payment of the impact fee at the time of building permit. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unapproved minutes from the September 5, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 

 Copy of the Certified Survey Map. 

 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Natasha Sheperd and Brett Bodenburg 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 20 of 55



Page 21 of 55



Page 22 of 55



Page 23 of 55



Page 24 of 55



Page 25 of 55



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2018                                                          ITEM NO: 8. D. 
 
TITLE:  Consider approval of three-lot CSM at N49 W5237 Portland Road; and action thereon (Plan 
Comm. 09/05/18) 

  
ISSUE SUMMARY The applicant is seeking approval of a certified survey map which will divide the 

existing 2.03-acre parcel located at N49 W7907 Western Road into three lots of 24,892sf, 30,266sf 

and 129,617sf in size. The existing home will be located on Lot 3 and the future homes on Lots 1 

and 2 will require Plan Commission approval as these lots will be classified as infill. Since this land 

division will result in the dedication of public right–of-way, State law requires approval by Common 

Council action. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff review of the Certified Survey Map indicates full compliance with 

the dimensional requirements of the Zoning Code and therefore staff recommends approval. 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: At their September 5, 2018 

meeting the Plan Commission recommended approval by unanimous vote subject to the following: 

 Common Council approval. 

 Payment of the impact fees for Lots 1 and 2 at the time of building permit issuance (Per lot 

impact fee for 2018 = $7,843.39). 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  Impact fee due at the time of building permit issuance. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Unapproved minutes from the September 5, 2018 meeting. 

 Copy of the Certified Survey Map 

 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Marc Cassel, Owner 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 

Page 26 of 55



Page 27 of 55



Page 28 of 55



Page 29 of 55



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2018                                                               ITEM NO:  8. E. 

                         

 

TITLE: Consider funding for Highway 60 traffic study; and action thereon. 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: The City owned 60-acre former Kohlwey farm on highway 60 has long been planned for 

a business park. Sewer and water utilities have systematically been extended toward highway 60, and the Cedar 

Place Apartment project will now extend utilities within about one-quarter mile of the site. 

 

If the Common Council intends to move forward with the business park, one of the first steps is to complete a 

traffic impact analysis (TIA), as the State will require this before any permit for highway 60 access can be 

issued. We expect the required level of improvements to be quite extensive, and the TIA will help define that. 

 

Staff received a proposal for phase-1 of the TIA from the local engineering firm Traffic Analysis and Design, 

Inc. in the amount of $5,470.00. 

 

The TIA’s are completed in two phases. After the first phase has been reviewed by the State Department of 

Transportation, they define the scope of work for the second phase. The phase-2 TIA is estimated to cost 

between $10,000 and $17,000.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: If the Common Council wishes to move forward with business park 

development within the next few years, staff recommends completing the phase-1 TIA this fall, and budgeting 

$17,000 for the phase-2 TIA in 2019.  

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $5,470 for the phase-1 TIA and an estimated $10,000 to $17,000 for phase-2.  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  TIA proposal received from Traffic Analysis and Design, Inc. 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza 262-375-7610 

                                                                 
 

Page 30 of 55



Page 31 of 55



Page 32 of 55



Page 33 of 55



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE: September 24, 2018                                                                   ITEM NO:  8. F. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider bids received for repairs to the Woolen Mills and Columbia Mills dams; and action thereon. 

 

           

ISSUE SUMMARY: The City has worked with Graef to complete DNR required inspections and technical 

studies on the Woolen Mills, and Columbia Mills dams. The inspections generated a list of repairs for which 

DNR established a completion date of October 31, 2018. 

 

Staff advertised for bids, but only received one bid for the repairs. That bid was some three times the City’s 

cost estimate of $473,000. The sole bid was received from JF Brennan Company, Inc. in the amount of 

$1,422,000. 

 

We have made some inquiries to better understand the lack of interest in our project, and we hear that the 

contractors are extremely busy, and therefore very selective in the projects they pursue. Some of this work is 

very specialized and involves construction in the creek. Access for construction equipment is poor, and 

contractors fear the regulatory oversight.  

 

It appears the best approach may be to reject the bid received, split the work scope into multiple contracts, and 

rebid the work with a completion date in 2019. 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Given that the City only received one bid, and that bid is substantially over 

budget, staff recommends we reject the bid. 

          

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $1,422,000.      

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Copy of Dam Repair bid 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

 

   

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza – Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                            (262)375-7610  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 34 of 55



Page 35 of 55



Page 36 of 55



Page 37 of 55



Page 38 of 55



Page 39 of 55



Page 40 of 55



Page 41 of 55



Page 42 of 55



Page 43 of 55



Page 44 of 55



Page 45 of 55



Page 46 of 55



Page 47 of 55



Page 48 of 55



Page 49 of 55



Page 50 of 55



Page 51 of 55



Page 52 of 55



Page 53 of 55



Page 54 of 55



Page 55 of 55


	CC Agenda 09-24-18
	CC Min 09-10-18
	Blue Sheet - Annexation Western Road
	Ord 2018-15 - Annexation Western Road
	Western Road Annexation Map
	PC Minutes 09-05-18
	Blue Sheet - Annexation Referal Wauwatosa Rd
	Wawautosa Road Annexation Petition & Map
	Blue Sheet - CSM Sheboygan Road
	CSM - Sheboygan Road
	Blue Sheet - CSM Portland Road
	CSM - Portland Road
	Blue Sheet - Hwy 60 traffic study
	Traffic Impact Analysis Proposal
	Blue Sheet - Dam Repair Bid
	Dam Repair Bid
	Bills
	Administrators Report
	Fire Inspection Report



